
 

 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Schools 
Improvement 
 
Tuesday, 1 December 2009 at 12.00 pm 
County Hall 
 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on 9 December 2009 unless called in 
by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 
 
These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
 
 
 
Note:  Date of next meeting: 5 January 2010 
 
 
 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

 
Tony Cloke  
Assistant Head of Legal & Democratic Services November 2009 
 
 
Contact Officer: 

 
Graham Warrington 
Tel: (01865) 815321; E-Mail: 
graham.warrington@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Petitions and Public Address  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Questions from County Councillors  
 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am on the 

working day before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the 
Cabinet Member’s delegated powers. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting 
is limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the 
meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with 
questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this 
item will receive a written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and 
will be the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other 
councillor or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the 
subject of further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of 
the agenda, but before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda 
circulated at the meeting, together with any written response which is available at 
that time.  
 

4. Fitzwaryn School, Wantage - Phase 2 Modernisation and 
Permanent Post-16 Provision (Pages 1 - 8) 

 Forward Plan Ref: 2009/187 
Contact: John Phipps, School Organisation & Planning(01865 816455) 
12.00 noon 
 
Report by the interim Director for Children, Young People & Families (CMDSI4) 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement is RECOMMENDED to 
approve Detailed Project Appraisal ED715. 
  

 



Page 3  
 

 

 

5. Wood Farm Primary School (Pages 9 - 46) 
 Forward Plan Ref: 2009/187 

Contact: Barbara Chillman, Service Manager, Principal Officer, School 
Organisation (01865 816459) 
12.10 pm 
 
Report by the interim Director for Children, Young People & Families 
(CMDSI5) 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the publication of a statutory notice for the expansion of Wood 
Farm Primary School, Oxford. 

  
  

 

 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): Grove and Wantage 
 
 

DETAILED PROJECT APPRAISAL APPRAISAL NO. ED 715 
 
NAME OF SCHEME:  Fitzwaryn School, Wantage – Phase 2 Modernisation 

and Provision of Post 16 Accommodation  
 
COMMITTEE(S): Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement 
 
START YEAR: 2009/2010 
 
BASIS OF ESTIMATE:  Atkins estimate based on agreed sketch scheme. 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

Fitzwaryn School is an outstanding special school as identified by Ofsted in 
their reports in 2005 and 2008 and provides for pupils with special education 
needs (SEN).  The special needs of the pupils range from complex moderate 
learning difficulties to those with severe or profound and multiple learning 
difficulties with an increasing number of pupils having autistic spectrum 
conditions.  The school was awarded specialist status in 2007 for its work in 
Cognition and Learning. 
  
The existing accommodation has suitability, condition and accessibility issues 
and in April 2008, the Cabinet approved Phase 1 of the modernisation 
programme to replace the temporary classrooms and provide internal 
accessibility through the school together with a sensory theatre provided as 
part of the schools designation as a SEN Cognition & Learning College under 
the Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) Specialist Schools 
Programme.  This work is currently under construction and is due to be 
completed in January 2010. 
 
The second phase of work, which is the subject of this Detailed Project 
Appraisal, will complete the modernisation of the school to improve suitability 
and accessibility together with the provision of a permanent post-16 unit as a 
response to the County Council’s Cabinet decision in January 2008 to extend 
the age range at most special schools and make provision for 16 – 19 year 
olds.  Provision for post-16 pupils has been provided since September 2008 in 
temporary accommodation on the school site and this will be removed on 
completion of the permanent building 
 

2. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 
The proposed project works comprise three areas of new provision and 
upgrading of existing provision as follows: 

 
A. Modernisation of existing accommodation is provided by a new 

extension and by internal alteration to provide 1 Foundation Stage 
classroom with integral toilet, hygiene, withdrawal and storage 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



CMDSI4 
 
 

facilities, 4 Keystage classrooms with integral withdrawal and 
storage facilities, group room, medical room, sensory room, pupil 
changing and shower facilities, pupil and staff toilets and 2 hygiene 
rooms incorporating level or ramped access between areas.  The 
alterations will provide full accessibility avoiding the need to use the 
hall as an access route. 

 
B. Modernisation of the existing Art, Design and Technology and Food 

Technology areas by refurbishment and minor internal alteration 
incorporating new fittings, benching and equipment to give 
dedicated Food Technology, Science and Technology facilities. 
  

C. Provision of a new Post-16 Unit.  The accommodation will be 
provided as a purpose built unit separate from the main school 
incorporating a large entrance area, common room for social and 
life skills work, 2 tutor bases, small group room, storage for 
equipment and resources, pupil toilets and hygiene facilities, staff 
workbase and toilet facilities.  Externally, the access road will be 
extended to provide taxi drop-off area and paved entrance, external 
secure outdoor play areas to tutor bases and re-provision of double 
minibus garage.  The temporary post-16 classroom will be removed 
and the external areas reinstated. 

 
The scheme has been designed to DCSF guidelines set out in the recent 
Building Bulletin No.102 for special school design.  The scheme meets the 
objectives of the County Council’s Corporate Plan by improving the 
opportunity to enjoy effective teaching and learning. 
 
The scheme has the full support of staff and the school’s governing body. 
 

3. JUSTIFICATION AND ASSESSMENT OF NEED 
 
This phase of proposed work will complete the modernisation of the school 
that has been started by the first phase of work to replace the temporary 
classrooms and provide some internal accessibility improvements. 
 
Fitzwaryn School was designed and built to meet a different range of pupil 
needs to those currently being given places at the school and this raises 
significant suitability issues with accommodation.  Classrooms are undersize 
and restrict pupil movement, there is a lack of toilet, hygiene, changing and 
shower facilities for pupils and there is a lack of suitable pupil behaviour 
control facilities. The main school buildings are set at different levels that 
follow the general slope of the ground and the steps between levels present 
significant difficulties for pupils with mobility problems and for staff attending 
pupils in wheel chairs. 
 
The number of children with moderate learning difficulties has decreased 
because of their inclusion on mainstream school sites and, consequently, 
there has been an increase in children with severe and complex learning 
difficulties especially the various forms of autism.  The suitability of teaching 
spaces needs to be improved to meet the changing needs of pupils by 

Page 2



CMDSI4 
 
 

increasing the area of general classrooms and by modernising the toilet, 
hygiene and specialist facilities in order to meet the needs of a higher ratio of 
pupils with profound and multiple learning difficulties (PMLD). 
 
The County’s Asset Management Plan priority is to replace temporary 
buildings and to remove significant suitability issues together with addressing 
accessibility issues that exist with the current accommodation.  The proposed 
scheme meets these objectives and is in agreement with the County Council's 
Corporate Plan priorities to provide sufficient accommodation to enable 
delivery of the National Curriculum and the County Council’s Children’s and 
Young Peoples Plan which outlines five key outcomes for children and young 
people: 
• Enjoying and Achieving 
• Staying Safe 
• Economic Wellbeing 
• Being Healthy 
• Making a Positive Contribution 
 

4. OTHER OPTIONS 
 

Other options need to be considered with the additional factor that 
approximately £2m of capital investment related to the Phase 1 works has 
already been made on the current site.  The other options are: 
 
1. to replace the school with a new building on the existing school site – this 

would provide accommodation fit for purpose and would cost 
approximately £7m.  The cost of this option is in excess of available 
funding 

2. to replace the school with a new building co-located with the new 
secondary school planned in Grove - this would provide accommodation fit 
for purpose and would cost approximately £7m assuming site acquisition 
costs are equivalent to the sale of the existing site.  The timescale of this 
option has not been established and the additional land would need to be 
the subject of negotiation with the developers 

3. to replace the secondary element of the school with a new building co-
located with the new secondary school planned in Grove - the cost of this 
option would need to include the costs of land acquisition and the cost of 
modernising the remaining primary element on the current site – total cost 
£6m - £7m 

 
All these options are dependent upon funding and/or site availability and 
consequently the current need to provide fit for purpose accommodation can 
not be achieved in the short-term which would leave Fitzwaryn School with 
unsuitable accommodation for an undefined number of years.  None of these 
options take into account the firm resolution and wish of the Governors and 
staff to stay on the current site and not to have the school co-located in whole 
or in part.  

 

Page 3



CMDSI4 
 
 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

(i) Capital 
 

The estimated cost of the project inclusive of fees is £3,200,000.  
 

These costs will be met from developer contributions secured under 
S106 agreements and identified for this school or countywide SEN 
provision (£90,000), school contribution from their Devolved Formula 
Capital grant and other school funding (£100,000), special needs 
adaptations provision (£200,000), Targeted Capital Grant for SEN 
Modernisation (£1,000,000) and the balance of (£1,810,000) from 
government loan sanction provided as part of Oxfordshire’s Supported 
Capital Expenditure allocation.  
 
The scheme is identified in the Capital Programme Forward Plan. 
 

(ii) Revenue  
 

The school will meet day-to-day repair and maintenance costs and 
structural repairs and staffing costs as part of the Council’s Fair 
Funding arrangements. 
 
The net floor area of the school will increase by 760 m2 as a result of 
these works and this will be reflected in an adjustment in the school’s 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funding formula under the current 
basis of the formula (as 6th form and under-16 year space is not 
separately identified in the formula build as currently agreed with 
schools).  This is merely a methodology for allocation funding and is not 
a formula to recompense for specific costs. Schools have delegated 
powers over their budgets and therefore are free to determine priorities 
and appropriate expenditure accordingly but are required to manage 
within their resources.  6th form funding is from a different source to 
DSG. It should be noted that this floor area allocation may change for 
2011-12 onwards with a new 3 year funding cycle subject to 
consultation with schools.   
 
The school has a substantive current balance on revenue budget plan 
and in conjunction with devolved capital balances available should be 
able to contribute the required funds as set out in the plan without 
adversely affecting ongoing operational requirements.  

 
(iii) Risk 

 
Regular risk assessments have been carried out and a Risk Register is 
maintained to manage, reduce or remove identified risks. 
 

Page 4



CMDSI4 
 
 

(iv) Whole Life Appraisal 
 
Whole life appraisal techniques have been integrated within the design 
development of this project to reduce running costs to the end user. 
 

6. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are none arising from this report 
 
7. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The building work will be carried out in accordance with the planning 
permission issued by the County Council. The design, materials and 
landscaping will be as specified in the planning consent.  
 
The design provides for natural ventilation and solar shading without depriving 
the internal areas of natural lighting, as per "Guidelines for Environmental 
Design in Schools - Building Bulletin 87". 
 
The post -16 new building is expected to receive a “Very Good” rating and the 
extensions to the existing building is expected to receive a "Good" rating in 
the Building Research Establishment’s Environmental Assessment Method 
(BREEAM) Pre-Assessment estimation, which allows a quick evaluation of the 
likely environmental rating a building would achieve under a formal BREEAM 
Schools assessment. 
 
The post-16 new building will be designed with an aspiration to achieve a 
CO2 reduction of 60% compared to the 2002 Building Regulations.  This will 
be achieved in part by the incorporation of a ground source heating system. 
 
The sustainability principles applied to the design incorporate the values of 
comfort, good internal environment (heating, lighting, ventilation) and 
adequacy to the teaching areas. The existing quality of the site and landscape 
will be enhanced by re-provision of the same number of trees that will be lost. 
The scheme takes into account the current services and building features and 
in so doing will make efficient use of the available resources. 
 

JIM CROOK 
Interim Director for Children, Young People & Families Directorate  
 
SUE SCANE 
Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer 
 
NEIL MONAGHAN 
Head of Property, Environment & Economy 
 
Contact Officer:  John Phipps, Service Manager – Capital Planning, 

School Organisation and Planning, 
Children, Young People and Families Directorate  
Tel:   (01865) 816455 

November 2009  

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



CMDSI4 ANNEX 1

Resource Appraisal
         
Status: Detailed Project Appraisal
Approval Ref: ED 715

Capital Project: Fitzwaryn School, Wantage - Phase 2 Modernisation
and Post 16 Unit

Price Base: 1st qtr 2010

Capital Expenditure and Financing

Cost of Project 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 20011/12 2012/13 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Purchase - Land & Buildings -            
Construction 1,600       1,160       2,760        
Furniture/Equipment -            
Other works -            
Consultant Fees 75             130          110          315           
Other Fees & Charges 25             25             
Risk / Contingency 100          100           

Total Estimated Payments -          -          100           1,730       1,270       100          3,200        

The Net Construction Cost per square metre is ; New Build £2,154;  Alterations £1,181       

Funding of Project 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 20011/12 2012/13 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Credit Approval (Borrowing) 730          1,180       100          2,010        
Capital Receipt(s) (Corp.Resources) -            
Contribution From Third Parties 100          90            190           
Grant(s) 100           900          1,000        
Revenue Contribution(s)  -            

-            
Total Financing -          -          100           1,730       1,270       100          3,200        

Revenue Implications
Corporate Costs
Capital Financing (Cost of borrowing) 18 98

Service Implications
2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 20011/12 2012/13 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employees
Running Costs
Income
Less net current cost

Net Cost/(Saving) to Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Staffing 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 20011/12 2012/13 Total
FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Additions/(Savings) resulting
from the project

Other 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): Barton & Churchill 
 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR SCHOOLS IMPROVEMENT 
1 DECEMBER 2009 

 
PROPOSAL TO EXPAND WOOD FARM PRIMARY SCHOOL, 

OXFORD 
 

Report by Children, Young People & Families 
 

Introduction 
 

1. Wood Farm Primary School has a published admission number of 40 children. 
Due to rising numbers across Oxford City, 45 places were allocated to the 
school for September 2009. Primary Care Trust records and the annual 
census of local children in early years settings show that the demand for 
primary school places in Oxford is rising, and schools in this area will not have 
enough room in future years.  
 

2. A report (Annex 1) submitted to Cabinet on 20th May 2008 identified Wood 
Farm Primary School/Slade Nursery School as one of the first two schools in 
Oxfordshire to be rebuilt as part of the government-funded Primary Capital 
Programme. A revised version of the Primary Capital Programme Strategy for 
Change, including Wood Farm Primary School as a priority investment 
project, was approved by the Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement on 
10 June 2008 (Annexes 2-4). The cost of rebuilding Wood Farm Primary 
School has been included in subsequent copies of the CYP&F forward capital 
plan. 

 
3. The new proposal is to use this opportunity to also expand the school to help 

meet the growing demand for school places in Oxford.  
 

The Proposal 
 
4. The proposal is to increase the admission number from 40 to 60 children, on a 

permanent basis from September 2010. This will eventually increase the 
school’s total roll from its current 252 children in Years 1-6 (September 2009 
pupil census) to a maximum of 360.  
 

5. To accommodate this growth in pupil numbers, Wood Farm School will be 
rebuilt with 12 classrooms for Key Stage 1 and 2 pupils, as well as Foundation 
Stage rooms and more places at the Slade Nursery School.  

 
Representations 

 
6. During the informal consultation phase (10 September 2009 – 22 October 

2009) a meeting was held at the school for parents to discuss the plans with 
the headteacher and County Council officers.  
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



CMDSI5 
 
 

7. A consultation document (Annex 5) was sent to parents of children at Wood 
Farm Primary School, as well as to local councillors, other primary schools 
and early years providers in the Wood Farm area; it was also available on the 
OCC website. Six responses were received, none of which objected to the 
proposal.  The only concerns expressed were for the school to be supported 
through this period of major change, and for adequate parking to be provided. 
 

8. As no objections in relation to the proposal have been received, the decision 
on whether to publish a formal statutory proposal is referred to the Cabinet 
Member for Schools Improvement rather than the Cabinet. 

 
Making a Decision 

 
9. As this is a proposal to increase the size of the school by more than 25%, it is 

subject to statutory procedures, as established by The Education and 
Inspections Act 2006 (EIA 2006) and The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 (as amended 
by The School Organisation and Governance (Amendments)(England) 
Regulations 2007 which came into force on 21 January 2008).  
 

10. A decision is now required as to whether to publish formal proposals for this 
expansion. If approved, a statutory notice would be published, followed by a 
formal consultation period of four weeks. The decision-making power in terms 
of determining the notice will lie with the Cabinet, and a report will be put to 
the Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement if no representations are 
received, or to Cabinet if representations are received, for a final decision in 
due course. 

 
11. The Cabinet must be satisfied that the statutory consultation has been carried 

out prior to the publication of the notice.  
 

Financial and Staff Implications 
 
12. The August 2009 forward capital plan, as approved by Cabinet on 20th 

October 2009 (Annex 6) shows an allocation of £11,500,000 to rebuild Wood 
Farm Primary School.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

13. The Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the publication of a statutory notice for the expansion of Wood 
Farm Primary School, Oxford.  

 
 
JIM CROOK 
Interim Director for Children, Young People & Families 
 
Background papers:  Annex 1 - Report to Cabinet, May 2008; Annex 2 – 

Report to Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement, 
June 2008; Annex 3 - Investment priorities approved by 
Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement June 2008; 

Page 10



CMDSI5 
 
 

Annex 4 - Statement of Decision by Cabinet Member for 
Schools Improvement, June 2008; Annex 5 - consultation 
document; Annex 6: Capital programme August 2009 

 
Contact Officer:   Barbara Chillman, Principal Officer School Organisation, 

Commissioning, Performance and Quality Assurance, 
01865 816459 

 
November 2009 

Page 11



ANNEX 1 
 

ITEM CA8 
 

CABINET – 20 MAY 2008 
 

PRIMARY CAPITAL STRATEGY FOR CHANGE CONSULTATION 
  

Report by Director for Children, Young People & Families 
 

Introduction 
 
1. This report supplements the consultation document on the Primary Capital 

Programme - Strategy for Change (PCP-SC) which has been sent out to 
stakeholders. The deadline for the return of responses is 9 May 2008. The 
feedback obtained from the consultation (see Annex 1) for the letter sent to 
stakeholders and questionnaire to shape responses) will be analysed to 
inform the final version of the PCP-SC for Cabinet approval by means of a 
delegated decision on 3 June 2008, prior to final submission to the 
Department for Children, Schools & Families (DCSF) by 16 June 2008. 
 

Content of the Consultation Document 
 
2. The document has sections covering the following: 
 

• The local perspective 
• Baseline analysis 
• Long-term aims 
• Approach to change 
• Initial investment priorities 
• Conclusion  

 
3. It takes into account developments in the Children’s Services agenda, such 

as: extended schools; the five Every Child Matters (ECM) outcomes; and 
Early Years developments, including involvement of the private and voluntary 
sectors. 

 
4. The document has been written in accordance with the guidelines issued by 

the DCSF in December 2007. The guidelines make it very clear that 
Oxfordshire must give priority to capital investment that will support raising 
achievement in schools and tackling underperformance. 

 
5. The purpose of the document is to engage the stakeholders with the 

principles underlying the strategy, to obtain their support and feedback in 
order to inform the final version to be submitted to the DCSF. 

 
6. The DCSF has to approve the strategy to enable Oxfordshire to receive the 

first tranche of funding for 2009-10 as part of the Capital Programme for 
schools. 

 
7. Members may find it helpful to focus on sections three and five of the 

consultation document to ensure that they agree with the long term aims; 

Page 12



CMDSI5 
 
 

priorities; and the key criteria for determining the priorities for investment. The 
priorities and criteria are given on page 20 of the consultation document. The 
criteria are intended to measure the level of need experienced by children and 
families for each school based on the five ECM indicators; physical buildings; 
and strategic asset issues. 

 
8. There are three key criteria; with Enjoy & Achieve, reflecting the DCSF priority 

to raise achievement at Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2; and Physical buildings, 
taking into account the condition, suitability and appropriateness of buildings; 
having the highest scores. The next highest score criterion is for strategic 
asset issues to match demand to provision, including schools with surplus 
capacity and those which will need to expand to meet growth requirements. 
This will include popular and successful schools. 

 
9. Each locality has been scored in accordance with the criteria and the result is 

a ranking (see Annex 3) for prioritising capital investment. The first four 
localities in the ranking with the highest scores are also the four localities 
which have already received full locality reviews prior to the drafting of the 
consultation document. 

 
10. At this stage, but subject to feedback from the consultation, Oxford South 

East is at the top of the ranking. Within this locality two schools, Bayard’s Hill 
and Wood Farm, have been identified as the first two possible projects for the 
PCP-SC. Feedback on the locality review findings together with those of 
Cowley/Iffley; Headington/Wheatley; and North Oxford/Cumnor will be 
obtained at a summit meeting for all four Oxford localities on 3 May 2008. 
Further full locality reviews can be determined when the DCSF response to 
the PCP-SC has been received. 

 
Risk Management 
  

11. A detailed risk assessment can be found in the Project Initiation Document 
(PID) for the Primary Review. The main risk arises if the strategy does not 
meet the DCSF criteria. However, as the guidelines have been followed very 
closely and as a full consultation is being undertaken, the risk is considerably 
minimised. 

 
Financial and Staff Implications 

 
12. The indicative capital allocation is £5.8m for 2009-10, and £2.628m for  2010-

11. Subsequently, for 2010-13 a further £32.148m is provisionally allocated. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
13. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to: 
 

(a) note the content of the consultation document, the questionnaire 
format for stakeholder responses and the range of stakeholders 
contacted for response; 

 

Page 13



CMDSI5 
 
 

(b) approve the locality priority list for capital investment, as 
suggested by the criteria set out in Annex 3; and 

 
(c) agree to delegate to the Cabinet Member for School Improvement 

the decision to approve the final version of the strategy, which 
will include the locality priority list for capital investment, for 
submission to the DCSF by 16 June 2008. 

 
 
 
JANET TOMLINSON 
Director for Children, Young People & Families 
 
 
Background papers:  DCSF Guidance 
  
Contact Officer:  Irene Kirkman, Assistant Head of Raising Achievement 

Service – School Support Services – Tel: (01865) 815141 
 
May 2008 

Page 14



CMDSI5 
 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

ITEM CMDSI2 
 
CABINET MEMBER FOR SCHOOLS IMPROVEMENT – 10 JUNE 2008  

 
PRIMARY CAPITAL PROGRAMME – STRATEGY FOR CHANGE  

 
Report by Director for Children, Young People & Families  

 
Introduction  

 
1. The Cabinet received the consultation document sent out to stakeholders at 

its meeting on 20 May and considered the contents.  It focussed particularly 
on Section 5 and the criteria to determine capital investment priorities within 
localities.  Members voiced concerns about the need to balance the 
Department for Children, Schools & Families (DCSF) requirement to raise 
standards and tackle underperformance with the need to reflect local 
Oxfordshire priorities in terms of improving schools with buildings in poor 
condition.  

 
2. The Cabinet agreed the following:  
 

(a) to instruct officers to undertake further work on the criteria for capital 
investment (and hence the local priority list) and to include a list of 
schools for capital investment;  

 
(b) to delegate to the Member for Schools Improvement the decision to 

approve the final version of the Strategy which will include the locality 
priority list for capital investment for submission to the DCSF by 16 
June 2008 .  

 
Feedback from the Consultation  

 
3. A summary of the findings of the consultation is given at Annex 1 The 

Strategy has been amended to reflect the feedback including views of the 
Primary Review Board and the Cabinet instructions.  In respect of Section 5 – 
Initial Investment Priorities, the criteria have been changed as follows:  

 
• The Every Child Matters (ECM) Enjoy & Achieve criteria are now based on 

data over 4 years to include trends in school performance.  The maximum 
score remains 3 points.  

 
• The ECM outcomes Be Healthy, Stay Safe, Positive Contribution, and 

Economic Well Being have been replaced with a sliding scale application 
of the DCSF deprivation index.  The maximum score has been reduced to 
2 points.  

 

Page 15



CMDSI5 
 
 

• The maximum score for Physical Buildings with outstanding condition work 
equal to £200 per square metre or above has been increased to 2, thus 
increasing the maximum score for the whole section to 4 points.  

 
• The maximum score for strategic asset issues have been increased to 3 

points.  
 
• The overall maximum score remains 12 points.  

 
4. In the light of the above revised criteria, the priority list of localities for capital 

investment has changed with Thame/Watlington leading the list followed by 
Abingdon/Berinsfield, Headington/Wheatley and Oxford South East.  It is 
proposed that the top two localities receive full locality reviews as soon as the 
DCSF approval has been given for the Primary Capital Programme – Strategy 
for Change (PCP- SfC), with a suggested timeline of an October start to 
determine further capital expenditure in the two localities following on from the 
St Andrew’s and Mill Lane projects, which are already in the Capital 
Programme.  Bayard’s Hill and Wood Farm remain in the first wave of 
expenditure as they have been briefed and their locality Headington/Wheatley 
has already received a full locality review.  

 
5. The Member should note however that the localities provide only a framework 

for highlighting capital investment priorities.  Within the localities capital 
projects are based on schools with the greatest needs in terms of raising 
standards, deprivation and improving the condition of their buildings.  A list of 
schools currently requiring capital investment within the PCP is given in the 
spreadsheet supporting Section 5 of the SfC in Annex 2 in accordance with 
DCSF requirements.  

 
6. Thus, it can be seen that schools with the most pressing needs will receive a 

priority listing though their actual locality may be of a lower general priority.   
 

Financial and Staff Implications  
 
7. The indicative capital allocation is £5.8m for 2009-10 ad £2.628m for 2010-11.  

The provision of capital allocation, subject to DCSF agreement, is given in 
Section 5 of the PCP SfC in Annex 2.  

 
Timeline and Next Steps  

 
8. The deadline for the submission of the PCP strategy to the DCSF is 16 June.  

All Local Authority (LA) strategies will be independently evaluated and it is 
intended that LAs will be notified of the outcome by the end of September 
2008.  

 
9. There will be three categories of response:  
 

(a) approval without conditions;  
(b) approval with conditions;  

Page 16



CMDSI5 
 
 

(c) approval withheld until the LA has re-submitted an amended strategy 
with DCSF guidance.  

 
10. It is not the DCSF intention to reduce funding for any LAs with strategies that 

require further work in the light of (ii) and (iii) above.  
 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
11. The Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement is RECOMMENDED to:  
 

(a) indicate that he approves the changes in criteria as set out in 
paragraph 3 of the report;  

 
(b) approve the Primary Capital Programme – Strategy for Change for 

submission to the DCSF including the revised criteria, the revised 
locality priority list for capital investment, and the completed 
spreadsheet detailing the school projects including the first wave 
of expenditure.  

 
 
JANET TOMLINSON  
Director for Children, Young People & Families  
 
Background papers:  None  
 
Contact Officer: Irene Kirkman  
 Assistant Head of Raising Achievement Service  
 School Support Services  
 Tel: 01865 815843  
 
29 May 2008  
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



CMDSI5 ANNEX 3

PRIMARY CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Please input your Local Authority three digit Identification number here > 931

Oxfordshire

Overall Output Assumptions

Number of primary 
schools.

Number of schools 
that Local Authority 

has already 
reported as 

modernised since 
1997

Assessment of 
number of schools 

that need to be 
rebuilt / taken out of 

use.

Assessment of 
number of schools 

that need to be 
refurbished.

234 18 12 105

Balance of PCP Grant and PFI (Capex) Capital
(See Guidance Notes)

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

PCP Allocation 5,166,656 7,544,656

Of Which PFI 
Credits

CMDSI_DEC0109R05.xls Page 19



C
M

D
S

I5

O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e

N
am

e 
o

f 
S

ch
o

o
l/D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
ro

je
ct

D
C

S
F

 N
O

P
ro

je
ct

 T
yp

e
E

st
. S

ta
rt

 
D

at
e

E
st

. F
in

is
h

 
D

at
e

E
st

. C
o

st
H

o
w

 F
u

n
d

ed
+2

5%
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
la

ce
s

N
o

. A
d

d
it

io
n

al
  p

la
ce

s 
N

o
. p

la
ce

s 
re

m
o

ve
d

R
ef

N
o.

N
ot

es
:  

P
le

as
e 

in
se

rt
 n

am
e 

of
 s

ch
oo

l w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
.  

F
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
be

yo
nd

 th
e 

C
S

R
 p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
at

 L
A

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 n
am

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
  I

n 
su

ch
 a

 
br

ie
f d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 s

uf
fic

e.
  P

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
be

fo
re

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
is

 
pr

of
or

m
a

W
he

re
 K

no
w

n 
pl

ea
se

 in
se

rt
 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
D

C
S

F
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t

N
o.

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

fo
rm

at
.

32
0/

33
00

P
le

as
e 

se
le

ct
 fr

om
 th

e 
dr

op
 

do
w

n 
m

en
u

P
le

as
e 

in
se

rt
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 s
ta

rt
 

da
te

(d
d/

m
m

/y
yy

y)

P
le

as
e 

in
se

rt
 

pl
an

ne
d

co
m

pl
et

io
n

da
te

(d
d/

m
m

/y
yy

y)

P
le

as
e

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 
es

tim
at

ed
co

st
s 

in
 £

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 e
ac

h 
of

 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s 
th

e 
LA

 is
 p

la
nn

in
g 

to
 u

se
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 p

ro
je

ct
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

nu
m

er
ic

al
 k

ey
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 

th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 n
ot

es
.

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
se

pa
ra

te
d 

by
 a

 s
em

i-
co

lo
n.

 (
e.

g.
, 1

;4
;7

)

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

dr
op

 
do

w
n 

m
en

u 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

ha
s 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

25
%

 s
ur

pl
us

 
pl

ac
es

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

la
ce

s 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 

de
liv

er

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
ho

w
 m

an
y 

pl
ac

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

ou
t o

f u
se

1
B

ay
ar

ds
 H

ill
 

93
1/

25
21

2.
 N

ew
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t s

ch
oo

l
A

ug
-2

00
9

D
ec

-2
01

0
£6

,4
00

,0
00

3;
8;

11
N

o
2

W
oo

d 
F

ar
m

93
1/

25
89

2.
 N

ew
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t s

ch
oo

l
A

pr
-2

01
0

S
ep

-2
01

1
£6

,4
00

,0
00

1;
2;

3;
7;

8;
11

N
o

3
E

yn
sh

am
93

1/
22

09
7.

 R
ef

ur
b 

< 
50

%
/M

in
or

 w
or

ks
A

pr
-2

00
9

M
ar

-2
01

0
£4

00
,0

00
1;

11
N

o
4

La
un

to
n

93
1/

30
85

7.
 R

ef
ur

b 
< 

50
%

/M
in

or
 w

or
ks

N
ov

-2
00

8
S

ep
-2

00
9

£5
00

,0
00

1
N

o
5

H
ar

w
el

l
93

1/
25

63
7.

 R
ef

ur
b 

< 
50

%
/M

in
or

 w
or

ks
A

pr
-2

00
9

M
ar

-2
01

0
£2

00
,0

00
1;

11
N

o
6

P
ep

pa
rd

93
1/

32
05

7.
 R

ef
ur

b 
< 

50
%

/M
in

or
 w

or
ks

S
ep

-2
00

8
M

ar
-2

00
9

£6
00

,0
00

1;
11

N
o

7
C

ha
rlt

on
-o

n-
O

tm
oo

r
93

1/
30

81
5.

 R
ef

ur
b 

+ 
80

%
S

ep
-2

00
9

M
ar

-2
01

0
£1

,0
00

,0
00

1;
11

N
o

8
G

ra
ng

e
93

1/
20

58
7.

 R
ef

ur
b 

< 
50

%
/M

in
or

 w
or

ks
S

ep
-2

00
9

A
ug

-2
01

0
1;

11
N

o
9

M
ill

 L
an

e
93

1/
24

65
7.

 R
ef

ur
b 

< 
50

%
/M

in
or

 w
or

ks
S

ep
-2

00
9

Ja
n-

20
10

1;
11

N
o

10
G

re
at

 M
ilt

on
93

1/
31

87
7.

 R
ef

ur
b 

< 
50

%
/M

in
or

 w
or

ks
S

ep
-2

00
9

Ja
n-

20
10

1;
2;

11
N

o
11

T
ac

kl
ey

93
1/

31
44

7.
 R

ef
ur

b 
< 

50
%

/M
in

or
 w

or
ks

S
ep

-2
00

9
A

ug
-2

01
0

1;
11

N
o

12
H

or
nt

on
93

1/
20

01
7.

 R
ef

ur
b 

< 
50

%
/M

in
or

 w
or

ks
S

ep
-2

00
9

D
ec

-2
01

0
£5

00
,0

00
11

;1
3

N
o

13
B

an
ks

id
e 

- 
N

ew
 S

ch
oo

l
1.

 N
ew

 s
ch

oo
l

Ja
n-

20
09

S
ep

-2
01

0
£4

,0
00

,0
00

7
N

o
30

0
14

G
av

ra
y 

D
riv

e 
- 

N
ew

 S
ch

oo
l

1.
 N

ew
 s

ch
oo

l
M

ar
-2

00
9

S
ep

-2
01

0
£4

,0
00

,0
00

7
N

o
21

0
15

B
ar

le
y 

H
ill

93
1/

24
63

7.
 R

ef
ur

b 
< 

50
%

/M
in

or
 w

or
ks

N
ov

-2
00

8
O

ct
-2

00
9

£9
00

,0
00

1;
7;

11
N

o
16

S
t A

nd
re

w
s 

C
hi

nn
o r

93
1/

31
82

7.
 R

ef
ur

b 
< 

50
%

/M
in

or
 w

or
ks

Ja
n-

20
09

M
ar

-2
01

0
£1

,3
31

,0
00

6;
7;

1;
11

N
o

17
La

dy
gr

ov
e,

 D
id

co
t -

 N
ew

 S
ch

oo
l

1.
 N

ew
 s

ch
oo

l
Ja

n-
20

09
S

ep
-2

01
0

£3
,0

00
,0

00
7;

11
N

o
21

0
18

P
ro

je
ct

 A
 -

O
xf

or
d 

S
ou

th
-E

as
t l

oc
al

ity
2.

 N
ew

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t s
ch

oo
l

S
ep

-2
01

1
M

ar
-2

01
3

£2
50

,0
00

3
N

o
##

#

C
M

D
S

I_
D

E
C

01
09

R
05

.x
ls

Page 20



C
M

D
S

I5

O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e

N
am

e 
o

f 
S

ch
o

o
l/D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
ro

je
ct

N
ot

es
:  

P
le

as
e 

in
se

rt
 n

am
e 

of
 s

ch
oo

l w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
.  

F
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
be

yo
nd

 th
e 

C
S

R
 p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
at

 L
A

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 n
am

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
  I

n 
su

ch
 a

 
br

ie
f d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 s

uf
fic

e.
  P

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
be

fo
re

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
is

 
pr

of
or

m
a

B
ay

ar
ds

 H
ill

 
W

oo
d 

F
ar

m
E

yn
sh

am
La

un
to

n
H

ar
w

el
l

P
ep

pa
rd

C
ha

rlt
on

-o
n-

O
tm

oo
r

G
ra

ng
e

M
ill

 L
an

e
G

re
at

 M
ilt

on
T

ac
kl

ey
H

or
nt

on
B

an
ks

id
e 

- 
N

ew
 S

ch
oo

l
G

av
ra

y 
D

riv
e 

- 
N

ew
 S

ch
oo

l
B

ar
le

y 
H

ill
S

t A
nd

re
w

s 
C

hi
nn

o r
La

dy
gr

ov
e,

 D
id

co
t -

 N
ew

 S
ch

oo
l

P
ro

je
ct

 A
 -

O
xf

or
d 

S
ou

th
-E

as
t l

oc
al

ity

D
ep

ri
va

ti
o

n
S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

O
th

er
 S

ch
o

o
l 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t
S

u
p

p
o

rt
N

ew
 e

xt
en

d
ed

 a
n

d
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
se

rv
ic

es

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 / 
ef

fi
ci

en
t 

u
se

 o
f 

en
er

g
y

N
ew

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
. 

IC
T

S
E

N
 P

ro
vi

si
o

n
In

te
rf

ac
e 

w
it

h
 

P
F

I

P
le

as
e 

co
nf

irm
 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 
20

%
 m

os
t 

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

d
S

O
A

s

P
le

as
e

in
di

ca
te

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
%

 
of

 p
up

ils
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g
le

ve
l 4

+ 
in

 
E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
m

at
hs

 h
as

 
be

en
 le

ss
 th

an
 

65
%

 in
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
la

st
 4

 
ye

ar
s

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 is
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
5%

 w
or

st
 

ph
ys

ic
al

co
nd

iti
on

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

er
ic

al
 k

ey
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f a

ny
 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
ch

oo
l 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

su
pp

or
t

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
nu

m
er

ic
al

 k
ey

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 
ne

w
 e

xt
en

de
d 

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
se

rv
ic

es

F
or

 n
ew

 s
ch

oo
ls

 
pl

ea
se

 c
on

fir
m

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

dr
op

-
do

w
n 

m
en

u 
th

at
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 

m
ee

t 6
0%

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 c

ar
bo

n 
em

iti
on

s 
an

d 
B

R
E

A
M

 v
er

y 
go

od
.

F
or

 r
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t/ 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

pl
ea

se
 in

di
ca

te
, u

si
ng

 
th

e 
nu

m
er

ic
al

 k
ey

 
pr

ov
id

ed
,  

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 a

 n
ew

 
te

ac
hi

ng
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n,
as

se
m

bl
y 

ha
ll,

 
ki

tc
he

n/
di

ni
ng

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 p

la
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 b
y 

a 
se

m
i -

co
lo

n.
 (

e.
g.

, 1
;4

;7
)

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

er
ic

al
 k

ey
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f a
ny

 
ne

w
 IC

T
 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

pa
ra

te
d 

by
 a

 
se

m
i-c

ol
on

.
(e

.g
., 

1;
4;

7)

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

er
ic

al
 

ke
y 

in
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 

no
te

s 
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 
ne

w
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 S
E

N
.

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

ns
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
pa

ra
te

d 
by

 a
 s

em
i-c

ol
on

. 
(e

.g
., 

1;
4;

7)

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

dr
op

 
do

w
n 

m
en

u,
 

w
he

th
er

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
an

y 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
P

F
I 

co
nt

ra
ct

s.

N
o

N
o

Y
es

6.
 O

th
er

N
ot

 y
et

 k
no

w
n

1
N

o
N

o
N

o
Y

es
7.

 N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d
N

ot
 y

et
 k

no
w

n
1

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

1;
6

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

1;
2;

4;
7

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

7
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
6.

 O
th

er
1;

7
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
7.

 N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d
1;

7
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
7.

 N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d
1;

6;
7

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

1;
7

N
o

N
o

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

1.
 N

ew
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tr

e
7

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

1;
6;

7
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
6.

 O
th

er
1;

2
N

o
N

o
N

/A
N

o
7.

 N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d
4.

 C
om

m
un

ity
 U

se
N

ot
 y

et
 k

no
w

n
1

N
o

N
o

N
/A

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

4.
 C

om
m

un
ity

 U
se

N
ot

 y
et

 k
no

w
n

1
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
7.

 N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d
1;

6;
7

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

1;
3;

4;
7

N
o

N
o

N
/A

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

4.
 C

om
m

un
ity

 U
se

N
ot

 y
et

 k
no

w
n

1
N

o
Y

es
N

o
N

ot
 y

et
 k

no
w

n
1

N
o

C
M

D
S

I_
D

E
C

01
09

R
05

.x
ls

Page 21



C
M

D
S

I5

R
ef

N
o.

R
ef

N
o.

N
ot

es
:  

P
le

as
e 

in
se

rt
 n

am
e 

of
 s

ch
oo

l w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
.  

F
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
be

yo
nd

 th
e 

C
S

R
 p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
at

 L
A

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 n
am

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
  I

n 
su

ch
 a

 
br

ie
f d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 s

uf
fic

e.
  P

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
be

fo
re

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
is

 
pr

of
or

m
a

W
he

re
 K

no
w

n 
pl

ea
se

 in
se

rt
 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
D

C
S

F
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t

N
o.

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

fo
rm

at
.

32
0/

33
00

P
le

as
e 

se
le

ct
 fr

om
 th

e 
dr

op
 

do
w

n 
m

en
u

P
le

as
e 

in
se

rt
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 s
ta

rt
 

da
te

(d
d/

m
m

/y
yy

y)

P
le

as
e 

in
se

rt
 

pl
an

ne
d

co
m

pl
et

io
n

da
te

(d
d/

m
m

/y
yy

y)

P
le

as
e

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 
es

tim
at

ed
co

st
s 

in
 £

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 e
ac

h 
of

 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s 
th

e 
LA

 is
 p

la
nn

in
g 

to
 u

se
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 p

ro
je

ct
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

nu
m

er
ic

al
 k

ey
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 

th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 n
ot

es
.

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
se

pa
ra

te
d 

by
 a

 s
em

i-
co

lo
n.

 (
e.

g.
, 1

;4
;7

)

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

dr
op

 
do

w
n 

m
en

u 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

ha
s 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

25
%

 s
ur

pl
us

 
pl

ac
es

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

la
ce

s 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 

de
liv

er

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
ho

w
 m

an
y 

pl
ac

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

ou
t o

f u
se

1
1

G
re

at
 W

es
te

rn
 P

ar
k,

 D
id

co
t -

 N
ew

 S
ch

oo
l

1.
 N

ew
 s

ch
oo

l
S

ep
-2

01
1

A
pr

-2
01

3
£5

,0
00

,0
00

7
N

o
42

0
2

2
R

os
e 

H
ill

 -
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t S

ch
oo

l
93

1/
25

31
2.

 N
ew

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t s
ch

oo
l

A
pr

-2
01

1
S

ep
-2

01
2

£6
,0

00
,0

00
3;

8;
11

N
o

3
3

P
ro

je
ct

 A
 -

 O
xf

or
d 

S
ou

th
 E

as
t (

P
eg

as
us

)
2.

 N
ew

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t s
ch

oo
l

S
ep

-2
01

1
M

ar
-2

01
3

£5
,7

50
,0

00
3;

11
N

o
4

P
ro

je
ct

 B
 -

 O
xf

or
d 

C
ow

le
y-

Iff
le

y 
(S

S
 M

ar
y 

&
 J

oh
n)

4.
 E

xt
en

si
on

 +
 r

ef
ur

b
Ja

n-
20

12
Ju

l-2
01

3
£3

,0
00

,0
00

1;
2;

3;
8;

11
;1

2
N

o
5

P
ro

je
ct

 C
 -

 C
ow

le
y-

Iff
le

y 
(E

as
t O

xf
or

d)
4.

 E
xt

en
si

on
 +

 r
ef

ur
b

A
pr

-2
01

2
S

ep
-2

01
3

£2
,0

00
,0

00
1;

3;
11

N
o

6
P

ro
je

ct
 D

 -
 T

ha
m

e/
W

at
lin

gt
on

 L
oc

al
ity

4.
 E

xt
en

si
on

 +
 r

ef
ur

b
Ja

n-
20

13
S

ep
-2

01
4

£5
,0

00
,0

00
1;

3;
11

N
o

##
#

P
ro

je
ct

 E
 W

es
t E

nd
 O

xf
or

d
1.

 N
ew

 s
ch

oo
l

N
ov

-1
1

F
eb

-1
3

£4
,5

00
,0

00
7

 N
o 

24
0

C
M

D
S

I_
D

E
C

01
09

R
05

.x
ls

Page 22



C
M

D
S

I5

N
ot

es
:  

P
le

as
e 

in
se

rt
 n

am
e 

of
 s

ch
oo

l w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
.  

F
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
be

yo
nd

 th
e 

C
S

R
 p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
at

 L
A

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 n
am

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
  I

n 
su

ch
 a

 
br

ie
f d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 s

uf
fic

e.
  P

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
be

fo
re

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
is

 
pr

of
or

m
a

G
re

at
 W

es
te

rn
 P

ar
k,

 D
id

co
t -

 N
ew

 S
ch

oo
l

R
os

e 
H

ill
 -

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t S
ch

oo
l

P
ro

je
ct

 A
 -

 O
xf

or
d 

S
ou

th
 E

as
t (

P
eg

as
us

)
P

ro
je

ct
 B

 -
 O

xf
or

d 
C

ow
le

y-
Iff

le
y 

(S
S

 M
ar

y 
&

 J
oh

n)
P

ro
je

ct
 C

 -
 C

ow
le

y-
Iff

le
y 

(E
as

t O
xf

or
d)

P
ro

je
ct

 D
 -

 T
ha

m
e/

W
at

lin
gt

on
 L

oc
al

ity

P
ro

je
ct

 E
 W

es
t E

nd
 O

xf
or

d

P
le

as
e 

co
nf

irm
 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 is

 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 o
ne

 
of

 th
e 

20
%

 
m

os
t

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

d
S

O
A

s

P
le

as
e

in
di

ca
te

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
%

 
of

 p
up

ils
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g
le

ve
l 4

+ 
in

 
E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
m

at
hs

 h
as

 
be

en
 le

ss
 th

an
 

65
%

 in
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
la

st
 4

 
ye

ar
s

P
le

as
e

in
di

ca
te

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 is

 o
ne

 
of

 th
e 

5%
 

w
or

st
ph

ys
ic

al
co

nd
iti

on

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

er
ic

al
 k

ey
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f a

ny
 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
ch

oo
l 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

su
pp

or
t

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
nu

m
er

ic
al

 k
ey

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 
ne

w
 e

xt
en

de
d 

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
se

rv
ic

es

F
or

 n
ew

 s
ch

oo
ls

 
pl

ea
se

 c
on

fir
m

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

dr
op

-
do

w
n 

m
en

u 
th

at
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 

m
ee

t 6
0%

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 

ca
rb

on
 e

m
iti

on
s 

an
d 

B
R

E
A

M
 

ve
ry

 g
oo

d.

F
or

 r
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t/ 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

pl
ea

se
 in

di
ca

te
, u

si
ng

 
th

e 
nu

m
er

ic
al

 k
ey

 
pr

ov
id

ed
,  

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 a

 n
ew

 
te

ac
hi

ng
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n,
as

se
m

bl
y 

ha
ll,

 
ki

tc
he

n/
di

ni
ng

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 p

la
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 b
y 

a 
se

m
i -

co
lo

n.
 (

e.
g.

, 1
;4

;7
)

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

er
ic

al
 k

ey
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f a
ny

 
ne

w
 IC

T
 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

pa
ra

te
d 

by
 a

 
se

m
i-c

ol
on

.
(e

.g
., 

1;
4;

7)

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

er
ic

al
 

ke
y 

in
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 

no
te

s 
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 
ne

w
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 S
E

N
.

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

ns
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
pa

ra
te

d 
by

 a
 s

em
i-c

ol
on

. 
(e

.g
., 

1;
4;

7)

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 
us

in
g 

th
e 

dr
op

 
do

w
n 

m
en

u,
 

w
he

th
er

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
an

y 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
P

F
I 

co
nt

ra
ct

s.

N
o

N
/A

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

3.
 E

xt
en

de
d 

S
ch

oo
l p

ro
vi

si
on

N
ot

 y
et

 k
no

w
n

1
N

o
N

o
Y

es
Y

es
6.

 O
th

er
3.

 E
xt

en
de

d 
S

ch
oo

l p
ro

vi
si

on
N

ot
 y

et
 k

no
w

n
1

N
o

Y
es

N
o

N
o

2.
 S

of
t f

ed
er

at
io

n
3.

 E
xt

en
de

d 
S

ch
oo

l p
ro

vi
si

on
N

ot
 y

et
 k

no
w

n
1

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

3.
 E

xt
en

de
d 

S
ch

oo
l p

ro
vi

si
on

1
N

o
N

o
Y

es
N

o
1

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

Y
es

N
o

N
o

7.
 N

on
e 

re
qu

ire
d

3.
 E

xt
en

de
d 

sc
ho

ol
 p

ro
vi

si
on

N
ot

 y
et

 k
no

w
n

1
N

o

C
M

D
S

I_
D

E
C

01
09

R
05

.x
ls

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



CMDSI5 

ANNEX 4 
 
Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement 
– 10 June 2008  
  

Statement of Decision 
  

Primary Capital - Strategy for Change 
  
Present: 
Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement : Councillor  Michael Waine 
Officers: Deborah Miller (Corporate Core) 

Irene Kirkman (Children, Young People & Families) 
  
Also in attendance:   
Other 
Members:  

Councillor Jean Fooks Shadow Cabinet Member) 

  
Documentation considered: 
Report  Primary Capital - Strategy for Change 

  
A copy is attached to the signed copy of this decision. 
  
Declarations of interest:  
Councillor   A personal interest on the grounds that  
  
Summary of representations in person 
  
Councillor Fooks expressed concern about the criteria which had been used for 
accessing which schools would receive capital investment.  She believed schools 
should have been accessed on an individual basis and not by locality and that there 
should be an ‘excellent’ school at the heart of any community.  She asked the 
Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement to clarify the following: 
  
• How did the Council define ‘excellent’? 
• Deprivation index – did the super output areas meet up with reality? 
• Would transport be provided – would it be accessible? 
• Would ‘rural pockets’ lose out? 
• Accessibility was not in the current criteria – this should be priority for some funding? 
 
Cabinet Member’s Comments 
 
The capital investment for schools is decided by the criteria – if a school achieved 
high marks against the criteria then that school would be highly rated in the priority 
list for action not withstanding locality rating. 

  

The definition of excellent would have to be the same as what Ofsted called 
outstanding.  The deprivation index and super output areas were out of the Council’s 
control. 

  

Page 25



CMDSI5 
 
 

Existing rules and regulations regarding transport would apply, though accessibility 
programmes currently in progress would not be affected by the Primary Capital 
Programme (PCP). 

  

The criteria consulted on and agreed by the Primary Review Board and the Cabinet 
must be the basis for funding allocation, though being in a low priority locality would 
not prevent schools in need from receiving funding. Further, the list was not static 
and would change over time. The aim was to ensure a balance of schools across 
Oxfordshire would benefit.  The locality was only a framework vehicle for the review 
so that all issues could be looked at in the round. 

  

Following officer recommendation, I agree to replace ‘excellent’ with ‘outstanding’ in 
the strap line ‘Providing an excellent school in the heart of the community’, where it 
is used. 

 

Decision 

 

Having regard to the arguments and options set out in the documentation before me, 
the representations made to me and the further considerations set out above, I 
confirm my decisions on this matter as follows: 
 
to: 

 

(a)  indicate that he approves the changes in criteria as set out in paragraph 3 of 
the report; 

 
(b approve the Primary Capital Programme – Strategy for Change for submission 

to the DCSF including the revised criteria, the revised locality priority list for 
capital investment, and the completed spreadsheet detailing the school 
projects including the first wave of expenditure; 

 
(c) omit the locality table from the submission to the DCSF, in that it was for 

internal use rather than external; and 
 
(d) ask the Primary Review Board to submit an Annual Report to Cabinet on 

progress. 
 
 
 
 
Signed ......................................................................  

Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement 
 
Date …………………………………. 
 

Page 26



Consultation on the
proposal for the

expansion of
Wood Farm Primary

School, Oxford

10 September 2009 – 22 October 2009

Produced by Oxfordshire County Council and the Governors of
Wood Farm Primary School 

E617-15 Wood Farm:Layout 1  07/09/2009  08:51  Page 2

ANNEX 5

CMDSI5

Page 27



Consultation on the proposal for the expansion of
Wood Farm Primary School, Oxford

Wood Farm Primary School shares its site on the Wood Farm estate in Headington with
the Slade Nursery School. 

The number of children in each year group at the last pupil census (May 2009) is shown
below:

R = Reception. 

Why are we consulting?

Until now the school has planned to admit 40 children each year. Due to rising numbers
across Oxford City, 45 children were admitted to the school for September 2009. In the
May pupil census, five of the seven year groups had more than 40 children. 

Primary Care Trust records and the annual census of local children in early years settings
show that the demand for primary school places in Oxford is rising, and schools in this
area will not have enough room in future years. 

Wood Farm Primary School/Slade Nursery School will be one of the first two schools in
Oxfordshire to be rebuilt as part of the government-funded Primary Capital Programme.
We want to take this opportunity to not only rebuild Wood Farm Primary School, but also
expand it to help meet the growing demand for school places in Oxford. 

We think that this is an improving school at the heart of its community, which
should expand. We want to know your views and whether you are happy to see the
school grow. 

What we want to do

We are planning to permanently increase the school admission number from 40 to 60.
This means that each year group would consist of up to 60 places, with 2 classes per
year group. Classes will have up to 30 children. 

To accommodate this growth in pupil numbers, Wood Farm Primary School will be rebuilt
with 12 classrooms for Key Stage 1 and 2 pupils, as well as Foundation Stage rooms.
The Slade Nursery School will also be rebuilt.

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total

44 44 37 42 42 37 43 289

E617-15 Wood Farm:Layout 1  07/09/2009  08:51  Page 3

CMDSI5

Page 28



Consultation on the proposal for the expansion of
Wood Farm Primary School, Oxford

Your views

Because of the large increase in the proposed size of the school we need to make sure
that the proposal is supported locally. 

This consultation with parents, local schools and others will take place until
Thursday 22 October 2009. You have until that date to respond (see details below). 

If as a result of the consultation the county council wants to go ahead, we will publish a
public notice in a local newspaper and at the school. This would be the final opportunity
for people to comment on the proposal. The County Council Cabinet or the Cabinet
Member for Schools Improvement will then make the final decision in spring 2010. 

How you can respond to this consultation 

The information necessary for an informed response is contained in this consultation
document, which is also available online at: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/consultation

You can respond in one of three ways:

• complete the response form at the back of this document and send it to the address
shown on the response form

• write a letter and send it to the address shown on the response form

• email your response to the email address shown on the response form.

Parents are asked to complete only one form, even if you have more than one child at the
school. Return your form as soon as possible, but by Thursday 22 October 2009 at the
latest.

There will be a meeting for parents of children at Wood Farm Primary School on Monday
19 October at 5.00pm to discuss the proposal and the plans for rebuilding the school.
This will be an opportunity to ask questions of the headteacher and county council staff. 

E617-15 Wood Farm:Layout 1  07/09/2009  08:51  Page 4

CMDSI5

Page 29



Alternative formats of this publication can be made available on request.
These include other languages, large print, Braille, Easy Read,

audiocassette, computer disc or email.
Please telephone 01865 816454

or email propertyassets@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Produced by:
County Print Finishers, Unit 7, Oxford Business Centre, Osney Lane, Oxford, OX1 1TB

Tel: (01865) 815672 • Fax: (01865) 204309 E617-15 (09/09)
100% recycled paper

Printed with vegetable based inks

Consultation on the proposal for the expansion of
Wood Farm Primary School, Oxford

I/we wish to make the following comments:

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

Signature ....................................................................

Name ..........................................................................

Parent      Governor      Local resident      Other (specify) ..........................

Tick all that apply

Please return to:

School Organisation and Planning
FREEPOST OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

No stamp required.

E617-15 Wood Farm:Layout 1  07/09/2009  08:51  Page 1

CMDSI5

Page 30



F
in

an
ci

n
g

 o
f 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

T
ab

le
 1

 :
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
T

ab
le

 2
: 

F
in

an
ci

n
g

 D
et

ai
ls

F
in

an
ci

n
g

C
re

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

va
ls

A
n

n
u

al
 C

ap
it

al
 G

u
id

el
in

es

B
as

ic
 C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

l
27

,8
89

22
,3

56
33

,7
04

33
,7

04
32

,9
37

0
0

15
0,

59
0

S
u

p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls

T
o

ta
l F

in
an

ce
 A

va
ila

b
le

11
2,

01
2

12
3,

58
0

81
,6

58
89

,2
85

92
,9

89
49

,7
83

30
5

54
9,

61
2

P
ay

m
en

ts
/ N

o
ti

o
n

al
 P

ay
m

en
ts

T
o

ta
l C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls
36

,1
95

28
,1

89
37

,7
92

36
,8

54
36

,0
79

0
0

17
5,

10
9

D
ir

ec
t 

R
ev

en
u

e 
F

in
an

ci
n

g

T
o

ta
l D

ir
ec

t 
R

ev
en

u
e 

F
in

an
ci

n
g

1,
36

0
1,

08
1

38
0

39
0

0
0

0
3,

21
1

T
o

ta
l P

ay
m

en
ts

/ N
o

ti
o

n
al

 P
ay

m
en

ts
10

4,
16

3
13

2,
92

7
96

,2
37

83
,5

72
87

,1
07

50
,9

74
0

55
4,

98
0

C
ap

it
al

 R
ec

ei
p

ts

F
in

an
ci

n
g

 S
u

rp
lu

s(
+)

/ S
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

(-
)

7,
84

9
-9

,3
47

-1
4,

57
9

5,
71

3
5,

88
2

-1
,1

91
30

5
-5

,3
68

T
o

ta
l U

sa
b

le
 R

ec
ei

p
ts

7,
14

2
11

,5
35

5,
01

8
13

,8
55

3,
22

5
0

0
40

,7
75

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 31



C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

99
4

1,
28

5
1,

99
5

0
0

0
0

0
4,

27
4

0
35

7
0

0
3,

91
7

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1,
69

0
19

,8
13

19
,6

40
2,

58
8

0
0

0
0

43
,7

31
0

31
,0

45
0

2,
12

8
10

,5
58

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

1,
48

1
2,

31
7

56
4

40
0

0
0

0
4,

40
2

0
2,

51
6

0
0

1,
88

6

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 32



C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
ily

 C
en

tr
es

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
il y

 C
en

tr
es

14
0

2,
98

4
11

,1
39

0
0

0
0

0
14

,2
63

0
14

,1
99

0
0

64

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 o

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 C

en
tr

es

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l Y
o

u
th

 C
en

tr
es

75
3

99
2

1,
39

9
35

0
0

0
0

3,
17

9
0

1,
47

2
20

30
0

1,
38

7

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 H
o

m
es

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t s

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

O
th

er
 S

ch
em

es

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 33



C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

IC
T

R
et

en
ti

o
n

s 
&

 O
xf

o
rd

 C
it

y 
S

ch
o

o
l 

R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l O
th

er
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

3,
94

3
8,

66
5

10
,2

65
3,

15
0

2,
85

3
2,

74
4

0
0

31
,6

20
90

0
14

,7
13

0
2,

82
2

13
,1

85

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l C
Y

P
F

9,
00

1
36

,0
56

45
,0

02
5,

81
3

2,
85

3
2,

74
4

0
0

10
1,

46
9

90
0

64
,3

02
20

5,
25

0
30

,9
97

S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

0
11

,3
06

10
,8

40
10

,7
53

9,
56

4
9,

56
4

10
,0

00
0

62
,0

27
0

62
,0

27
0

0
0

C
ap

it
al

 A
d

ju
st

m
en

ts
 / 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
ro

vi
si

o
n

s

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

70
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

0
0

5,
20

0
0

0
0

0
5,

20
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

Y
P

&
F

9,
70

1
48

,2
62

56
,7

42
17

,4
66

13
,3

17
13

,2
08

10
,0

00
0

16
8,

69
6

90
0

12
6,

32
9

20
5,

25
0

36
,1

97

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 34



C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 35



C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

R
is

k 
/ C

o
n

ti
n

g
en

cy

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
ily

 C
en

tr
es

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 36



C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

H
al

ls
 &

 K
it

ch
en

s

S
p

ec
ia

l E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 N

ee
d

s

L
o

ca
lly

 C
o

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

id
ed

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

O
u

td
o

o
r 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 S

er
vi

ce

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 C

en
tr

es

C
h

ild
re

n
 H

o
m

es
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
p

ec
if

ic
 / 

D
el

eg
at

ed
 F

u
n

d
in

g

IC
T

T
O

T
A

L
 

0
4,

34
1

31
,7

24
35

,8
49

38
,5

52
50

,0
47

40
,9

74
20

1,
48

7
96

,3
34

2,
19

5
10

2,
95

8

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 37



S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(3

)

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
L

ib
ra

ri
es

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

er
it

ag
e 

&
 A

rt
s

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

04
4

3,
04

0
3,

38
2

2,
60

0
2,

70
0

0
0

0
12

,7
66

0
47

0
94

42
0

11
,7

82

S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h

R
es

id
en

ti
al

D
ay

 C
en

tr
es

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

1,
49

5
3,

12
7

4,
08

9
42

1
0

0
0

0
9,

13
2

0
1,

98
8

0
0

7,
14

4

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 38



S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(3

)

S
tr

at
eg

y 
&

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
&

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
2,

18
1

27
9

1,
67

5
68

8
0

0
0

0
4,

82
3

0
46

3
0

1,
10

0
3,

26
0

R
et

en
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
in

o
r 

W
o

rk
s

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

11
,9

15
80

2
18

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
,8

97
0

84
0

0
11

,3
25

73
2

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 S
&

C
S

16
,6

35
7,

24
8

9,
32

6
3,

70
9

2,
70

0
0

0
0

39
,6

18
0

3,
76

1
94

12
,8

45
22

,9
18

T
O

T
A

L
 S

&
C

S
16

,6
35

7,
24

8
9,

32
6

3,
70

9
2,

70
0

0
0

0
39

,6
18

0
3,

76
1

94
12

,8
45

22
,9

18

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 39



E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

0
20

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
20

1
5

19
6

0
0

0

20
09

/1
0 

S
ta

rt
s

L
T

P
2

N
et

w
o

rk
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

R
o

ad
 S

af
et

y

O
xf

o
rd

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 40



E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

 O
xf

o
rd

T
o

w
n

s 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

P
u

b
lic

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

S
m

ar
te

r 
C

h
o

ic
es

 (
B

W
T

S
)

S
al

ar
ie

s

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

20
,7

87
9,

53
6

12
,7

47
13

,3
52

3,
81

0
2,

10
0

0
0

62
,3

32
27

,8
21

29
,8

64
21

8
1,

03
6

3,
39

3

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 41



E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s
0

0
0

5,
47

5
7,

25
1

7,
43

2
0

0
20

,1
58

20
,1

58
0

0
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

1,
66

8
16

,0
78

12
,9

64
13

,6
20

13
,8

92
14

,1
70

0
0

72
,3

92
68

,0
96

2,
57

5
90

0
0

82
1

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
)

22
,4

55
25

,8
15

25
,7

11
32

,4
47

24
,9

53
23

,7
02

0
0

15
5,

08
3

11
6,

08
0

32
,6

35
1,

11
8

1,
03

6
4,

21
4

T
O

T
A

L
 E

&
E

 (
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

)
22

,4
55

25
,8

15
26

,0
11

32
,7

47
25

,2
53

23
,7

02
0

0
15

5,
98

3
11

6,
08

0
32

,6
35

1,
11

8
1,

93
6

4,
21

4

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 42



E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(O

th
er

) 
- 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

C
ar

b
o

n
 M

an
ag

em
en

t

B
O

P

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

6,
51

9
7,

58
3

1,
75

5
63

7
12

0
0

0
0

16
,6

14
0

30
6

40
3

7,
27

5
8,

63
0

20
09

/1
0 

S
ta

rt
s

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 43



E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(O

th
er

) 
- 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

89
2,

63
6

1,
75

6
1,

11
4

35
0

0
0

0
5,

94
5

0
3,

35
7

0
31

0
2,

27
8

P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

17
,3

52
6,

44
7

2,
97

5
65

0
60

0
10

0
0

0
28

,1
24

0
1,

88
2

0
0

26
,2

42

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

O
T

H
E

R
)

23
,9

60
16

,6
66

6,
48

6
2,

40
1

1,
07

0
10

0
0

0
50

,6
83

0
5,

54
5

40
3

7,
58

5
37

,1
50

T
O

T
A

L
 E

&
E

 (
O

T
H

E
R

)
23

,9
60

16
,6

66
6,

48
6

2,
40

1
1,

07
0

10
0

0
0

50
,6

83
0

5,
54

5
40

3
7,

58
5

37
,1

50

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 44



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

F
ir

e 
&

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l F
ir

e 
&

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

14
9

34
9

1,
01

3
2,

23
5

1,
63

0
0

0
0

5,
37

6
0

1,
54

4
37

0
3,

79
5

G
yp

sy
 &

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

it
es

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l G
yp

sy
 &

 t
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

it
es

0
19

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
19

5
0

18
2

13
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

20
1

20
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

40
2

0
40

2
0

0
0

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

35
0

74
5

1,
01

3
2,

23
5

1,
63

0
0

0
0

5,
97

3
0

2,
12

8
50

0
3,

79
5

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
35

0
74

5
1,

01
3

2,
23

5
1,

63
0

0
0

0
5,

97
3

0
2,

12
8

50
0

3,
79

5

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 45



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
R

E
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

0
0

0
4,

00
0

0
0

0
0

4,
00

0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

R
E

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
0

0
0

4,
00

0
0

0
0

0
4,

00
0

C
M
D
S
I5

Page 46


	Agenda
	4 Fitzwaryn School, Wantage - Phase 2 Modernisation and Permanent Post-16 Provision
	CMDSI_DEC0109R03

	5 Wood Farm Primary School
	CMDSI_DEC0109R05
	CMDSI_DEC0109R06
	CMDSI_DEC0109R07
	CMDSI_DEC0109R08


